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Reinvent, Rescale & Return
In an ever-changing world, digital advancement is critical 
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Letter of Transmittal

Annual Report of Community Bank Bangladesh Limited for the year ended 31 December 2021

With best regards,

Saiful Alam, FCS
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Notice of the 3rd Annual General Meeting

Saiful Alam, FCS
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Vision, Mission and Brand Pillars

Vision

Mission
• 
• 
• 

• 

• 

Brand Pillars
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We promise to stay agile and 
embrace the changes in the macro-
economic environment and aim 
to respond to the challenges and 
opportunity it creates. The Bank runs 
on its three pillars - Trust, Security, 
and Progress. These are deeply rooted 
in everything that we do. Beyond 
the economic aspects, our strategy 
revolves around financial inclusion 
of the diverse communities of the 
country. Aligned with our strategic 
intent, we have been purposefully 
investing in system, people, process, 
technology and distribution to 
build our capabilities to secure the 
sustainable future of the company. 

Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)

Inspector General, Bangladesh Police

Statement from the Chairman
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Statement from the Chairman 
Dear Shareholders,

Performance Review

In 2021,  entered into its 2nd 

 
and 

emergence of another strong wave of the , 
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Macroeconomic Review

Industry Review
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People

Technology

Distribution Channel 

Corporate Governance 

Strategy 



Community Bank Annual Report 202114 communitybankbd.com

Outlook

Acknowledgements

Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)
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Statement from the Managing Director and CEO

While growing, the Bank 
remains firmly focused on 
building the safest and strongest 
balance sheet in the industry. 
Our borrowers are carefully 
selected and rigorously 
monitored. We promise to stay 
vigilant about the regulatory 
changes, remain transparent 
and provide adequate 
disclosures to our customers, 
shareholders, regulators and 
other stakeholders. In our 
journey at Community Bank, 
we try to build partnership with 
our stakeholders and promote 
constructive dialogues with them 
to make sure that our strategies 
and decisions are consistent with 
their expectations.

Masihul Huq Chowdhury 
Managing Director & CEO
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Statement from the Managing Director and CEO

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim, 

- Service

Business

Key Numbers
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Service

Compliance and Governance

Technology 
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People

Brand and Communication

Outlook

towards achieving the dream of the Father of the Nation, 

Acknowledgement 

Masihul Huq Chowdhury
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Board of Directors

Dr. Md. Moinur Rahman Chowdhury, BPM (Bar)
Additional Inspector General (A&I), 
Bangladesh Police

Mr. Md. Ferdoush Ali Chowdhury
Superintendent of Police (Rangpur District), 
Bangladesh Police

Mr. Chowdhury Abdullah Al-Mamun, BPM (Bar), PPM
Additional Inspector General, Bangladesh Police & 
Director General, Rapid Action Battalion (RAB)

Mr. Masud Khan, FCA, FCMA
Chairman, Unilever Consumer Care Limited and
Chief Advisor, Crown Cement Group 

Mr. Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM
Additional Inspector General, Bangladesh Police &
Principal, Bangladesh Police Academy

Mr. Kazi Masihur Rahman
Ex- Managing Director & CEO 
of Mercantile Bank Limited

Mr. Habibur Rahman, BPM (Bar), PPM (Bar)
Deputy Inspector General (Dhaka Range), 
Bangladesh Police

Dr. Abdullah Al Mahmud
Professor, Department of Banking & Insurance
Faculty of Business Studies, University of Dhaka

Dr. Shoeb Reaz Alam
Additional Deputy Inspector General 
(Development Revenue-1), Bangladesh Police

Managing Director & CEO
Mr. Masihul Huq Chowdhury

Chairman
Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)
Inspector General, Bangladesh Police
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Executive Committee

Chairman

Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)
Inspector General, Bangladesh Police

Members

Dr. Md. Moinur Rahman Chowdhury, BPM (Bar)
Additional Inspector General (A&I), 
Bangladesh Police

Mr. Chowdhury Abdullah Al-Mamun, BPM (Bar), PPM
Additional Inspector General, Bangladesh Police & 
Director General, Rapid Action Battalion (RAB)

Mr. Md. Ferdoush Ali Chowdhury
Superintendent of Police (Rangpur District), 
Bangladesh Police

Mr. Kazi Masihur Rahman
Ex- Managing Director & CEO 
of Mercantile Bank Limited

Managing Director & CEO
Mr. Masihul Huq Chowdhury
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Risk Management Committee

Chairman

Dr. Md. Moinur Rahman Chowdhury, BPM (Bar)
Additional Inspector General (A&I), 
Bangladesh Police

Members

Mr. Chowdhury Abdullah Al-Mamun, BPM (Bar), PPM
Additional Inspector General, Bangladesh Police & 
Director General, Rapid Action Battalion (RAB)

Mr. Habibur Rahman, BPM (Bar), PPM (Bar)
Deputy Inspector General (Dhaka Range), 
Bangladesh Police

Managing Director & CEO
Mr. Masihul Huq Chowdhury
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Audit Committee

Chairman

Mr. Masud Khan FCA, FCMA
Independent Director

Members

Mr. Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM
Additional Inspector General, Bangladesh Police &
Principal, Bangladesh Police Academy

Mr. Habibur Rahman, BPM (Bar), PPM (Bar)
Deputy Inspector General (Dhaka Range), 
Bangladesh Police

Dr. Shoeb Reaz Alam
Additional Deputy Inspector General 
(Development Revenue-1), Bangladesh Police

Dr. Abdullah Al Mahmud
Professor, Department of Banking & Insurance
Faculty of Business Studies, University of Dhaka

Managing Director & CEO
Mr. Masihul Huq Chowdhury
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Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)

Chairman
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Dr. Md. Moinur Rahman Chowdhury, BPM (Bar)

Director
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Mr. Chowdhury Abdullah Al-Mamun, BPM (Bar), PPM

Director
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Mr. Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM

Director
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Dr. Shoeb Reaz Alam

Director
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Mr. Md. Ferdoush Ali Chowdhury

Director
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Mr. Masud Khan FCA, FCMA 
Independent Director
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Mr. Kazi Masihur Rahman
Independent Director
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Mr. Masihul Huq Chowdhury
Managing Director & CEO
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Senior Management

Mr. S.M. Mainul Kabir Mr. Mohammad Yasser Noor

Mr. Mohammad Abdul Qaium Khan Ms. Hasi Rani Bepari

Mr. Mohammad Khairul Alam FCA Mr. Z M Masir Bin Quddus

Mr. Saiful Alam FCS Mr. Sk. Zalal Uddin Ahmed

Mr. A H M Kamal FCMA Mr. Mohammad Abdul Majid

Mr. Benozeer Ahmed FCMA, CPA [AUS] Mr. Nabadip Roy

Mr. Shamsul Haque Sufyani

Managing Director & CEO
Mr. Masihul Huq Chowdhury
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Corporate Governance
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Directors’ Report
Dear Shareholders,
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Global Economic Review

Global GDP Growth

The ongoing vaccination efforts has somewhat slowed 
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Global Unemployment

Global Commodity Markets

Regional Economic Review

Regional GDP 

Index Value



39communitybankbd.com Community Bank Annual Report 2021

Bangladesh Economy Review

GDP Growth

Export and Import

Inward Remittance

USD Million

 

Foreign Exchange Reserve

USD Million
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DSEX Index and Market Capitalization

Sovereign Ratings

Banking Sector Review

BDT Billion, %

Particulars Sep 20 Sep 21 Growth 

17,693 19,769 

11,424 12,605 

15,438 17,482

Economy and Industry Outlook
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Organizational Review
Our Business Philosophy

Principal Activities

Business Review

Performance against Budget

BDT Million, %

Particulars Actual Budget Variance

43,225 34,101 

59,075 41,000 

Net Interest Income 783 1,064 

Non-interest Income 743 504

1,526 1,568 

1,010 1,191 

516 377 

121 81 
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Quarterly Performance 

BDT Million, %

Particulars Q1’21 Q2’21 Q3’21 Q4’21
26,226 31,794 35,333 43,225 

     
38,350 48,196 60,721 59,075 

     
314 322 412 477

     
224 246 264 276 

     
90 76 148 201 

     
13 20 53 36 

to tighter cost control and greater one-off cost in the 

Sustainable Finance 

Green Banking
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Agri-Finance 

Corporate Social Responsibility

People

#

Employee Type 2020 2021

309 308

152 171

Total 461 479

Technology

Distribution Network

Internal Control System
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Types of Risks Risk Management Response

Credit Risk

 
 
 
 
   
 
 

Liquidity Risk

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Interest Rate Risk

 

 
adverse interest rate movement

 

 
 
 

Control Environment

Capital Management

BDT Million, %

Particulars (Solo Bank) 2021 2020

4,826 4,307

5,000 4,610

4,657 4,129

497 218

5,154 4,347

26,681 16,142

Credit Rating

Risk Management
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Types of Risks Risk Management Response

Compliance Risk

 

 

 

Reputational Risk

 
 
 
 
 

 

Technology Risk

 

 

 
 l
 

Operational Risk

 

 

 

 
archiving

Stakeholder Management Approach 

Customers

• 

Stakeholder Management 
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Stakeholder Management Approach 

Shareholders

Employees

Regulators

Suppliers

Media

Other Communities
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Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

maintained

The Preparation of Financial Statements

Board Committees

Appointment of Member of the Senior Management Team

Statutory Payments

Particulars 2021 2020

         

         

Statement of utilization of Proceeds from Debt Instrument

Statement of utilization of Proceeds from IPO (Initial 
Public Offering)

Statement of utilization of Proceeds from Right Share

Insider Trading

Interim Dividend
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Related Party Transaction

Capital Expenditure

Extra-ordinary Gain and Loss

Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors 

Post Balance Sheet Event

Litigation

Protested Bill

Contingent Liabilities

Claim by Tax Authority

Regulatory Fine or Penalties

Regulatory Returns and Compliance 

Rotation of Directors 

Statutory Auditors
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Particulars
Allotment

Year

Number of Shares
Issued

Face 
Value
(BDT)

Premium
Number of

Paid-up
Shares

Amount of 
Paid-up
(BDT)

Total Paid-
up Capital 

(Cumulative) 
(BDT)Bonus Cash

First Tranche 2019 - 400,000,000 10 - 400,000,000 4,000,000,000 4,000,000,000
Second Tranche 2020 - 28,000,000 10 - 28,000,000 280,000,000 4,280,000,000
Third Tranche 2020 - 33,000,000 10 - 33,000,000 330,000,000 4,610,000,000
Fourth Tranche 2021 - 300,000,000 10 - 30,000,000 300,000,000 4,910,000,000
Fifth Tranche 2021 - 90,000,000 10 - 9,000,000 90,000,000 5,000,000,000
Total 500,000,000 5,000,000,000

Pattern of Shareholding

Statement of Going Concern

Board and Board Committee Meeting and Attendance

Directors’ Remuneration

Financial Statements 

Status of Compliance on Corporate Governance

Key Operating and Financial Information

Acknowledgement

Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)
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Pattern of Shareholding

Sl.
No.

Name of the Shareholder Status No of Shares
Percentage (%

 of Share holding)

1. Bangladesh Police Kallyan Trust (BPKT) Sponsor 49,99,99,993 99.9999986

2.
Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)
Inspector General, Bangladesh Police

Chairman 01 0.0000002

3.
Dr. Md. Moinur Rahman Chowdhury, BPM (Bar) 
Additional Inspector General (A&I)
Bangladesh Police

Director 01 0.0000002

4.
Mr. Chowdhury Abdullah Al-Mamun, BPM (Bar), PPM
Additional Inspector General, Bangladesh Police and
Director General, Rapid Action Battalion (RAB)

Director 01 0.0000002

5.
Mr. Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM
Additional Inspector General, Bangladesh Police &
Principal, Bangladesh Police Academy

Director 01 0.0000002

6.
Mr. Habibur Rahman, BPM (Bar), PPM (Bar)
Deputy Inspector General, Dhaka Range
Bangladesh Police

Director 01 0.0000002

7.
Dr. Shoeb Reaz Alam
Additional Deputy Inspector General
(Development-Revenue-1), Bangladesh Police

Director 01 0.0000002

8.
Mr. Md. Ferdoush Ali Chowdhury
Superintendent of Police (Rangpur District)
Bangladesh Police

Director 01 0.0000002

Total 50,00,00,000 100
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Statement on Going Concern
Annexure-B

Particulars Indication*

No

- No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

falling
No

No
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There are some other indicators which underline the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. These are narrated below: 
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A) Attendance and Remuneration of Directors for Board Meeting 

Sl.
No.

Name of the Director Designation

Total
Meeting

Held
in his
tenor

Total
Meeting
Attended

Total
Remuneration

Chairman 08 08

08 08

08 06*

08 08

08 08

08 08

08 08

08 08

08 08

08 08

08 08 Nil

Attendance and Remuneration af Directors
Annexure-C
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Sl.
No.

Name of the Director Designation

Total
Meeting 

Held
in his 
tenor

Total
Meeting
Attended

Total
Remuneration

Remarks

02 01

2021

granted for the meeting in 

B) Attendance and Remuneration of Directors for Board Executive Committee Meeting 

Sl.
No. Name of the Director Status with

the Bank

Status with 
the 

Committee

Total
Meeting 

Held
in his 
tenure

Total
Meeting
Attended

Total
Remuneration

(BDT)

01 Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar) Chairman Chairman 01 01

02
Dr. Md. Moinur Rahman Chowdhury, BPM (Bar)

01 01

03
Mr. Chowdhury Abdullah Al-Mamun, BPM (Bar), PPM

01 01

04
Mr. Md. Ferdoush Ali Chowdhury

01 01

05
Mr. Kazi Masihur Rahman

01 01
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C) Attendance and Remuneration of Directors of Board Audit Committee Meeting 
        

Sl. 
No. Name of the Director

Status
with 

the Bank

Status
with 
the

Committee

Total
Meeting 

Held
in his tenor

Total
Meeting
Attended

Total
Remuneration

01
Mr. Masud Khan, FCA, FCMA

Chairman 10 10

02 10 10

03 10 07*

04
Dr. Shoeb Reaz Alam

10 10

05

Dr. Abdullah Al Mahmud

10 10

D)   Attendance and Remuneration of Directors for Board Risk Management Committee Meeting 
       

Sl.
No

Name of the Director

Status
with 
the

Bank

Status
with the

Committee

Total
Meeting 

Held
in his
tenor

Total
Meeting
Attended

Total
Remuneration

01 Dr. Md. Moinur Rahman Chowdhury, BPM (Bar) Chairman 04 04

02 Mr. Chowdhury Abdullah Al- Mamun, BPM (Bar), PPM 04 03*

03 04 04

Sl.
No Name of the Director Designation

Total
Meeting

Held in his
tenure

Total
Meeting
Attended

Total
Remuneration

(BDT)
Remarks

01 01 01

2021

meeting was held
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Annexure-D

Key Operating and Financial Data of Preceding Years

Particulars 2019* 2020 2021
Financial Position

10,000 10,000 10,000 

4,000 4,610 5,000 

7,035 29,056 68,351 

682 19,496 43,225 

2,849 23,393 59,075 

Financial Performance 

320 764 1,526 

266 853 1,010 

54 516 

Capital Measure (Solo Bank)

 2,651  16,142 26,681

 3,977  4,129  4,657 

 8  218 497

 3,984  4,347 5,154

Credit Quality

682 19,496 43,208

-   -   17 

-   -   

Key Ratios

#

Other Information

6 18 18 

-   110 111 

62 163 168 
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Corporate Governance
Report of Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Practice in Bangladesh

Corporate Governance Practice by 
Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

The Board
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Sl.
No.

Name Status with the Bank

01 Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar) Chairman

02
Dr. Md. Moinur Rahman Chowdhury, BPM (Bar)

Director

03

Mr. Chowdhury Abdullah Al-Mamun, BPM (Bar), PPM
Director

04
Mr. Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM

Director

05
Mr. Habibur Rahman, BPM (Bar), PPM (Bar)

Director

06
Dr. Shoeb Reaz Alam

Director

07
Mr. Md. Ferdoush Ali Chowdhury

Director

08
Mr. Masud Khan, FCA, FCMA

 
Independent Director

09 Mr. Kazi Masihur Rahman Independent Director

10
Dr. Abdullah Al Mahmud

Independent Director

11 Mr. Masihul Huq Chowdhury Managing Director & CEO

Chairman of the Board

Independent Director

director 

in the 
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Appointment of Managing Director & CEO, 
Company Secretary (CS), Chief Financial 

Key Objectives of the Directors
and 

and 

The Board is responsible for ensuring the 
following:

information 

Number of Board Meetings held in 2021 and 
Remuneration

in 

The Committees of the Board of Directors

the 
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Name of the Director Status with the Bank
Status with

the Committee

Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)
Inspector General, Bangladesh Police

Chairman Chairman

Dr. Md. Moinur Rahman Chowdhury, BPM (Bar)
Additional Inspector General (A&I), Bangladesh Police

Director Member

Mr. Chowdhury Abdullah Al-Mamun, BPM (Bar), PPM
Additional Inspector General, Bangladesh Police & 
Director General, Rapid Action Battalion (RAB)

Director Member

Mr. Md. Ferdoush Ali Chowdhury
Superintendent of Police (Rangpur District), Bangladesh Police

Director Member

Mr. Kazi Masihur Rahman
Ex- Managing Director & CEO of Mercantile Bank Ltd

Independent Director Member

Responsibility of Executive Committee (EC)
The responsibility of Executive Committee of the Board is clearly delegated by the Board in line with regulatory 
guidelines. Accordingly, the EC exercises all the powers and functions on behalf of the Board in regards to:

 Approving credit proposals and monitoring quality of loan portfolio
 Administrative affairs and
 Financial affairs

Number of Executive Committee Meeting held in 2021 and Remuneration

Audit Committee of the Board (AC)
The Audit Committee of the Board is comprised of the following members of the Board.

Name of the Director Status with the Bank
Status with

the Committee

Mr. Masud Khan, FCA, FCMA
Chairman, Unilever Consumer Care Limited and
Chief Advisor, Crown Cement Group

Independent Director Chairman

Mr. Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM
Additional Inspector General, Bangladesh Police &
Principal, Bangladesh Police Academy

Director Member

Mr. Habibur Rahman, BPM (Bar), PPM (Bar)
Deputy Inspector General, Dhaka Range, Bangladesh Police

Director Member

Dr. Shoeb Reaz Alam
Additional Deputy Inspector General (Development Revenue-1)
Bangladesh Police

Director Member

Dr. Abdullah Al Mahmud
Professor, Department of Banking and Insurance
Faculty of Business Studies, University of Dhaka

Independent Director Member

Executive Committee of the Board
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Number of Audit Committee Meeting held in 2021 and Remuneration
The details of Audit Committee Meeting and Remuneration can be found in the other section of the Annual Report.

Risk Management Committee of the Board (RMC)
The Risk Management Committee of the Board is comprised of the following members of the Board.

Name of the Director Status with the Bank
Status with

the Committee

Dr. Md. Moinur Rahman Chowdhury, BPM (Bar)
Additional Inspector General (A&I), Bangladesh Police, 

Director Chairman

Mr. Chowdhury Abdullah Al-Mamun, BPM (Bar), PPM
Additional Inspector General, Bangladesh Police & 
Director General, Rapid Action Battalion (RAB)

Director Member

Mr. Habibur Rahman, BPM (Bar), PPM (Bar)
Deputy Inspector General, Dhaka Range, Bangladesh Police

Director Member

Number of Risk Management Committee 
Meeting held in 2021 and Remuneration
The details of Risk Management Committee Meeting 
and Remuneration is found in the other section of the 
Annual Report.

Salient Feature of the Objectives and Responsibilities 
of the Risk Management Committee of the Board are 
given below:

The TORs of the RMC is to oversee as to whether 
various core risks of the Bank i.e. Credit Risk, Foreign 
Exchange Risk, Internal Control & Compliance Risk, 
Money Laundering Risk, ICT Risk, Operational Risk, 
Interest Rate Risk, Liquidity Risk and other residual 

management and whether adequate risk management 
and risk mitigation systems have been put in place 
by the Bank management and whether adequate 
provisions and capital have been maintained against 
combined risks undertaken by the Bank. 

Preparation of Financial Statements
Financial statements of Community Bank Bangladesh 
Limited give a true and fair view of the state of affairs 
of the Bank and the results of its operations and cash 

Standards (IAS) and International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS) adopted by Financial Reporting 
Council (FRC) are complied with for preparation of 

prepared by the management and approved by the 
Board of Directors and audited by auditors appointed 
in the Annual General Meeting. 

Directors’ Responsibility for Internal Control 
and Financial Reporting
Directors’ statement on their responsibility for internal 

found in the other section of the Annual Report. 

External audit
MABS & J Partners, Chartered Accountants is the 
statutory (external) auditors of the Bank. They don’t 
provide any other accounting, taxation or advisory 
services.

Compliance with Bangladesh Bank regulations
As a commercial bank, Community Bank Bangladesh 
Limited is regulated and supervised by Bangladesh 
Bank under the Banking Companies Act, 1991 and 
rules and regulations made there under. Community 
Bank Bangladesh Limited attaches highest priority to 
strict compliance with all regulatory requirements of 
Bangladesh Bank in terms of core risk management, 
capital adequacy ratio, foreign exchange regulations, 
liquidity management, KYC and anti-money laundering 
compliance etc. 

Audit and Inspection by Bangladesh Bank
In addition to Annual Comprehensive Inspection of 
Community Bank Bangladesh Limited, Bangladesh 
Bank also undertakes audit & inspection of Community 
Bank Bangladesh Limited timely. Compliance with 
observations and recommendations made by 
Bangladesh Bank helps the Bank to improve internal 
control, risk management, corporate governance 

stakeholders. 

Shareholder’s Information
The pattern of Shareholding of Community Bank 
Bangladesh Limited as of 31 December 2021 as 
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Sl.
No.

Name of the Shareholder No of
Shares

Percentage (%)
of Share holding

1. Bangladesh Police Kallyan Trust (BPKT) (Sponsor) 49,99,99,993 99.9999986

2. Sponsor Director 7 0.0000014

Total 50,00,00,000 100

b.  Shareholding of Directors and their spouses and minor children

Sl.

No.
Name of the Director Status No of

Shares

No. of Shares 
of Spouse and 
Minor Children

1. Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)
Inspector General, Bangladesh Police

Chairman 01

Nil

2.
Dr. Md. Moinur Rahman Chowdhury, BPM (Bar)
Additional Inspector General (A&I)
Bangladesh Police

Director 01

3.
Mr. Chowdhury Abdullah Al-Mamun, BPM (Bar), PPM
Additional Inspector General, Bangladesh Police & 
Director General, Rapid Action Battalion (RAB)

Director 01

4.
Mr. Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM
Additional Inspector General, Bangladesh Police &
Principal, Bangladesh Police Academy

Director 01

5.
Mr. Habibur Rahman, BPM (Bar), PPM (Bar)
Deputy Inspector General, Dhaka Range
Bangladesh Police

Director 01

6.
Dr. Shoeb Reaz Alam
Additional Deputy Inspector General 
(Development Revenue-1), Bangladesh Police

Director 01

7.
Mr. Md. Ferdoush Ali Chowdhury
Superintendent of Police (Rangpur District)
Bangladesh Police

Director 01

8.
Mr. Masud Khan FCA, FCMA
Chairman, Unilever Consumer Care Limited and
Chief Advisor, Crown Cement Group

Independent 
Director Nil

9. Mr. Kazi Masihur Rahman
Ex-Managing Director & CEO of Mercantile Bank Ltd

Independent 
Director Nil

10.
Dr. Abdullah Al Mahmud
Professor, Department of Banking and Insurance 
Faculty of Business Studies, University of Dhaka

Independent 
Director Nil

 of Internal Control and Compliance and their spouses and minor children

Sl.
No.

Name of the Person Status No of
Shares

No. of Shares 
of Spouse and 
Minor Children 

1. Managing Director & CEO

Nil Nil2. Mr. Mohammad Khairul Alam, FCA Compliance

3. Mr. Saiful Alam, FCS SEVP & Company Secretary

4. Mr. Benozeer Ahmed, FCMA, CPA
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d. Shareholding by Executives : Nil

e. Shareholders holding 10% or more voting interest in the Bank

Sl. 
No.

Name of the Shareholders who hold 10% 
or more shares as on December 31, 2020 Status No of Shares held as on

December 31, 2021 
% of total no. of 
paid-up shares 

49,99,99,993

Information of Directors in compliance with the condition No. 1(5) (xxiv) of Corporate Governance guidelines dated 
03 June 2018 of Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC):

Sl. 

No.
Name of the Director Status

Membership of 
Committees of the 

Bank
Experience

1 Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar) Chairman i)  Board of Directors and
ii) Executive Committee

34 years of Service 
experience with
Bangladesh Police

2 Dr. Md. Moinur Rahman Chowdhury, BPM (Bar) Director
i)  Board of Directors,
ii) Executive Committee and 
iii) Risk Management Committee

34 years of Service 
experience with
Bangladesh Police

3
Mr. Chowdhury Abdullah Al-Mamun, BPM (Bar), PPM

Director
i)  Board of Directors, 
ii) Executive Committee and 
iii) Risk Management Committee

33 years of Service 
experience with
Bangladesh Police

4
Mr. Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM

Director
i)  Board of Directors and
ii) Audit Committee

31 years of Service 
experience with
Bangladesh Police

5
Mr. Habibur Rahman, BPM (Bar), PPM (Bar)

Director
i)  Board of Directors, 
ii) Audit Committee and 
iii) Risk Management Committee

24 years of Service 
experience with
Bangladesh Police

6
Dr. Shoeb Reaz Alam

Director
i)  Board of Directors and
ii) Audit Committee

24 years of Service 
experience with
Bangladesh Police

7
Mr. Md. Ferdoush Ali Chowdhury

Director
i)  Board of Directors and
ii) Executive Committee

17 years of Service 
experience with
Bangladesh Police

8

Mr. Masud Khan, FCA, FCMA
Independent 

Director
i)  Board of Directors and
ii) Audit Committee

41 Years of 
Professional 
Experience with 
various multinational 
and local companies

9 Mr. Kazi Masihur Rahman Independent 
Director

i)  Board of Directors and 
ii) Executive Committee

41 years of working 
experience in serving 
local and foreign 
Banks

10

Dr. Abdullah Al Mahmud
Independent 

Director
i) Board of Directors and
ii)Audit Committee

More than 16 
Years of Teaching 
Experience in Faculty 
of BusinessStudies, 
University of Dhaka

11 Mr. Masihul Huq Chowdhury
Managing 
Director & 

CEO

30 years of 
Banking Experience.
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Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s 

Securities and Exchange Ordinance, 1969:
(Report under Condition No. 9)

Condition
No. Title

Compliance Status

appropriate column) Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not
Complied

1 Board of Directors

Size of the Board of Directors 

√

Independent Directors 

√

For the purpose of this clause “independent director” means a director-

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

Corporate Governance Compliance Status
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√

√

√

√

None

√

None

√

None

√

Duality of Chairperson of the Board of Directors and 

√

√

√

√

Condition
No. Title

Compliance Status

appropriate column) Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not
Complied
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None arisen in the 

The Directors’ Report to Shareholders 

√

√

√

Not

None

-
ation arisen in 

√

None

None

None

√

√

√

√

√

√

Condition
No. Title

Compliance Status

appropriate column) Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not
Complied
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√

√

A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the 
aggregate number of shares (along with name-wise details 

-

√

√

√

√

In case of the appointment or reappointment of a director, a 

√

√

√

A Management’s Discussion and Analysis signed by CEO or 
MD presenting detailed analysis of the company’s position 
and operations along with a brief discussion of changes in the 

√

No

Condition
No. Title

Compliance Status

appropriate column) Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not
Complied
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√

√

√

Annexure-A
√

Annexure-B and Annexure-C
√

Meetings of the Board of Directors 

√

Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other Board 

√

The 
Committee 
was not 
formed 

√

Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company

√

√

√

√

Condition
No. Title

Compliance Status

appropriate column) Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not
Complied
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Compliance (HIAC) and Company Secretary (CS)

Appointment

√

√

√

√

√

Requirement to attend Board of Directors’ Meetings

the 
√

Duties of Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive 

The MD or CEO and CFO shall certify to the Board that they 

√

√

√

√

Board of Directors’ Committee

√

The Committee was not 

Condition
No. Title

Compliance Status

appropriate column) Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not
Complied
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5 Audit Committee

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

√

√

√

Constitution of the Audit Committee

√

√

√

Committee
√

√

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

√

√

√

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

√

Condition
No. Title

Compliance Status

appropriate column) Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not
Complied
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√

Role of Audit Committee
√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

management
√

√

√

√

Reporting of the Audit Committee

Reporting to the Board of Directors

√

Condition
No. Title

Compliance Status

appropriate column) Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not
Complied
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Not

Not

Not

Not

√

6 Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC)

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

The Committee 
was not 

Constitution of the NRC

Condition
No. Title

Compliance Status

appropriate column) Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not
Complied
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Chairperson of the NRC

Meeting of the NRC

Role of the NRC

t

-
-

Condition
No. Title

Compliance Status

appropriate column) Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not
Complied
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f

7 External / Statutory Auditors

√
√

√

√
√
√
√

√

√

√

√

8 Maintaining a website by the Company

New 

2018

listing

New 

2018

New 

2018

Condition
No. Title

Compliance Status

appropriate column) Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not
Complied
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9 Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance

the Annexure-C

Condition
No. Title

Compliance Status

appropriate column) Remarks
(if any)

Complied Not
Complied
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Report of the Audit Committee

Name Status with
the Bank

Status with
Committee

Educational Meeting
Attendance

Chairman

Roles and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

Internal Control

• To consider whether internal control strategies 

Financial Reporting

Internal Audit

External Audit

Compliance with existing Laws and Regulations

Other Responsibilities 
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2020 

Acknowledgement

Masud Khan FCA, FCMA 
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A) Scope of Application

Qualitative Disclosures

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

        

                   

Community Bank Investment Limited

Disclosures on Risk Based Capital (Basel III) based on 
31st December 2021
Introduction 

 Pillar 1

 Pillar 2

 Pillar 3

 
to 
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Quantitative Disclosures

B) Capital Structure
Qualitative Disclosures

terms and conditions of the main 

not 

Particulars Minimum Criteria Status of compliance
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Quantitative Disclosures

BDT in Million

1.  Common Equity Tier 1 (Going-Concern Capital) Solo Consolidated

Subtotal 4,816.25 4,814.03

159.00 159.00

Total Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 4,657.25 4,655.03
 2. Tier 2 Capital (Gone-Concern Capital)

Total Admissible Tier 2 Capital 496.86 496.86
 3. Total Regulatory Capital (1+2) 5,154.11 5,151.89

C) Capital Adequacy

Qualitative Disclosures

for assessing the 

activities
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Quantitative Disclosures

Risk Weighted Assets & Minimum Capital requirement under following Risk:
BDT in Million

Risk Weighted Assets  (RWA) Solo Consolidated

Total Risk Weighted Assets (b+c+d) 26,681.15 26,626.86

Minimum Capital Required (10% of RWA)

Total Capital Required (e+f+g) 2,668.12 2,662.69

- -

Total Regulatory Capital (1+2) 5,154.11 5,151.89

Capital Ratio

Capital to Risk-weighted Asset Ratio (CRAR) 19.32% 19.35%

Capital Conservation Buffer 9.32% 9.35%

Available capital under Pillar 2 requirement 1,154.11 1,151.89
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D) Credit Risk

Qualitative Disclosures

a) The general qualitative disclosure requirement with respect to credit risk: 

 

• 

• 

• 
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• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

general allowances 
and statistical 
methods

Loan Type
Rates of Provision

Standard SMA SS DF BL

-
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• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Quantitative Disclosures

 

Particulars Outstanding Mix (%)

7,231.65 16.73%

Demand Loan 3,924.41 9.08%

Term loan 31,093.83 71.93%

Credit Card 145.42 0.34%

Short Term Agri and Micro Credit 703.39 1.63%

Staff loans 89.59 0.21%

Bills purchased and discounted 36.42 0.08%

Total loans and advances 43,224.71 100.00%
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Particulars Outstanding    Mix (%)
Dhaka Division 32,163.27 74.41%
Chittagong Division 4,789.65 11.08%
Khulna Division 1,560.55 3.61%
Rajshahi Division 889.00 2.06%
Barisal Division 612.50 1.42%

Sylhet Division 1,181.58 2.73%

Rangpur Division 1,089.45 2.52%
Mymensingh Division 938.71 2.17%

Total loans and advances 43,224.71 100.00%

Particulars Outstanding Mix (%)

Agriculture Loan 

RMG

Textile

Food and allied industries

Pharmaceutical industries

Cement and ceramic industries

Power and gas

Steel Industries

Paper Industries

Electronic Goods Manufacturing

Polymer and polythene industries

Rubber and Plastic Industries

Assembling Industry

Service industries

Retail Trading

Wholesale Trading

Residential Real Estate

Infrastructure Development

Merchant banks & brokerage houses

Bangladesh Police Payroll

Others

Staff loan

Total loans and advances 43,224.71 100.00%
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Particulars Outstanding Mix (%)

                                  Total loans and advances 43,224.71 100.00%

Particulars
Amount

NPL SMA
-
- -

Term loans
- -

Total 17.10 5.88

and off-balance sheet exposures Amount

Total 500.80

Particulars 2021 2020
3.94 -

218.55 7.54

258.12 194.81

20.19 16.20

Closing balance sheet 500.80 218.55
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Particulars 2021 2020
-

-

- -

-

- -

-

- -

-

Write-off - -

- -

-

Qualitative Disclosures

• 

• 
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Quantitative Disclosures

Particulars Cost Price Market Price

Solo basis

Share

Share

Consolidated basis

Share

Share

• 

• 

• 

Particulars Solo Consolidated

Nil Nil

Nil Nil

Particulars
Market 
value

Risk 
Weight

Capital 
Charge

Solo Basis

Consolidated Basis
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F) Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book (IRRBB)

Qualitative Disclosures

Quantitative Disclosures

                                                   
Particulars       3 months        6 months         1 year

Duration Gap Analysis: 

Particulars Duration in years

3.69
1.12
2.64

Particulars Impact on earnings due to change in interest rates

Minor shock (1%) Moderate shock (2%) Major shock (3%)
Changes in Equity (1,683.33) (3,366.65) (5,049.98)
After shock Equity (CAR) 13.03% 6.71% 0.40%
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G) Market Risk

Qualitative Disclosures

activities

Quantitative Disclosures

Solo Consolidated

- -

H) Operational Risk
Qualitative Disclosures



93communitybankbd.com Community Bank Annual Report 2021

Particulars Solo Consolidated

Total Capital Requirement for Operational Risk 130.51 130.51

I) Liquidity Ratio
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• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

Quantitative Disclosures

Particulars Amount
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J) Leverage Ratio

leverage

    

Particulars Solo Consolidated

Leverage Ratio (%) 6.68% 6.69%

On balance sheet exposure 68,346.45 68,299.68

Off balance sheet exposure 1,488.33 1,488.33

Less: Regulatory adjustment 159.00 159.00

Total exposure 69,675.78 69,629.01
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K) Remuneration

whose advice has 

commissioned, and 
in what areas of the 

and as senior managers, 

order 

committee reviewed the 

that was made
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these 

 
• 
• 
• 
• 

reasons for the change, 

d)
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e)

deferred differs across 

of the factors that 
determine the fraction and 

arrangements
f)

i. Short term incentive or reward

• 
• 
• 

ii. 
• 
• 
• 
• 

of the different forms of 

factors that determine 



99communitybankbd.com Community Bank Annual Report 2021

Quantitative Disclosures

of sign-on awards made Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

j)

             
Particulars Amount

Salary 

Festival Bonus

PF contribution

Total 401.13

                                    

Particulars Amount

Deferred -

Non-deferred -

•                 

k)
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Green Banking and 
Sustainable Finance
Introduction 

threats 

CBBL Strategic Focus of Green Banking 
Going Green

Financial Inclusion

Giving Back to the Community

Customer Happiness

• 
• 

• 

• 
• 
• 

• 
• Video Conferencing and online meeting 

• 
• 
• of 

• 

Glance
• 
• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

Technologies

Sustainable & Green Finance
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Agri Finance

Conclusion
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Human Resources 
Management and 
Development

• 
• 

• 

• in 

• 

• 
• 
• 
• 

As on 
December 31, 

2021

As on 
December 31, 

2020

479 461

308 309

171 152

38 42

270 266

385 372

94 89

Total Training
Programs

Total 
Participants

Total
Man-days

Total 
Man-hours

29 929 1,419 10,912
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Digital Banking & ICT Update 2021

Award Category Name of Bank/NBFI Status

Ecosystem-led Innovation
Community Bank Bangladesh Limited Winner

Channel Innovation
Community Bank Bangladesh Limited Winner

Runners up

COVID Response Innovation

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
Winner

Golomt Bank LLC
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Channel Innovation

Branch

ATM & Service Desk
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Payment Instructions
To Bangladesh Bank 

Sa
la

ry
 D

is
bu

rs
em

en
t 

th
ro

ug
h 

EF
T

18 Branches

CBBL CSEs at 
102 Service Desks

Community Bank Bangladesh Community Cash

Prepaid Card POS

ATM & CRM

Mobile Wallets
(bKash, Nagad, Rocket)

Bangladesh Govt. Bangladesh Bank

Cash Out Options:
- Cash Withdrawal form Branch, ATM/CRM or MFS Agent Points
- Fund Transfer to other Bank or MFS Accounts through Community Cash
- Purchase through POS at Merchant points
- Bill Payments through Community Cash

bKash

Nagad

Rocket

NPSB/Q-Cash 
& Own Network

Fund Transfer
To Other Bank

Other Banks

Digitally Process Service/
Payment requests

Debit Card

Ecosystem-led Innovation

frictionless 

had 
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COVID Response Innovation

and as 

 

N
um

b
er

 o
f T

xn

Lockdown for 1st
wave of COVID-19

Lockdown for 2nd
wave of COVID-19
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 Community 

Launching of Credit Card and Payment of Bills 
  VISA 

Credit Card 

 

 DR site at Uttara, Dhaka; 

 
Central CCTV Monitoring System, 
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Treasury Division 

• 
• 
• other 

• 

• 

• 

Money Market

Foreign Exchange

Investment Desk
1. Fixed Income Investment (Govt. Securities)

• 

• 

2. Other Investments 

within 
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Asset Liability Management Desk
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Introducing Community Bank Customer 
Charter

Compliant Management

Methodology to assess the quality of 
Customer Service

 Roadmap to ensure customer 
satisfaction, loyalty and commitment 

Customer Service & Complaints Management 
Cells

Head

Sub
Branch

• Central Customer Service & Complaints 
Management Cell (CCS&CMC)

• Sub Branch Level Customer Service 
& Complaints Management Desk 
(SBLCS&CMD)

Branch • Branch Level Customer Service & Complaints 
Management Desk (BLCS&CMD)
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Customer Satisfaction Score (C-SAT) Mystery Shopping
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
COMMUNITY BANK BANGLADESH LIMITED
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Opinion

Basis for opinion 

Other matter

Other Information

Responsibilities of Management and 
Those Charged with Governance for the 
Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements and Internal Controls

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

 

Report on other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements
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MABS & J Partners
Chartered Accountants

Nasir Uddin Ahmed, FCA, FCS, CGMA, ACMA (UK)
Deputy Managing Partner

DVC No: 2203270535AS471283 
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Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Particulars Note 2021
Taka

PROPERTY AND ASSETS
Cash

 3.1(a) 
 3.2(b) 

 4,048,404,436 

Balance with other Banks and Financial Institutions  4(a) 
 4.1(a) 
 4.2(a) 

 6,951,926,629 
Money at call on short notice  5(a)  140,000,000 
Investments  6(a) 

 6.1(a) 
 6.2(a) 

 11,778,071,113 
Loans and Advances  7(a) 

7.1(a)
 7.2(a) 

 43,224,711,086 
 8(a)  1,177,533,012 

Other assets  9(a)  983,637,229 
Non-banking assets  - 

Total Assets  68,304,283,505 

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Liabilities
 11(a)  1,946,728,899 

Deposits and other accounts  12(a) 
 12.1(a) 
 12.2(a) 
 12.3(a) 
 12.4(a) 
 12.5(a) 

 59,026,438,522 
Other liabilities  13(a)  2,507,014,202 

Total Liabilities  63,480,181,623 

Capital / Shareholders’ Equity
 14.2 

 15 
 16 

 17(a) 
Total shareholders’ equity  4,824,101,882 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity  68,304,283,505 
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Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Particulars Note 2021
Taka 

Off-Balance Sheet Items

Contingent Liabilities 18

18.1

18.2

Irrevocable letters of Credit 18.3

18.4

Sub total  3,692,709,523 

Other Commitments

Sub total  - 

Total Off-Balance Sheet items including contingent liabilities  3,692,709,523 

MABS & J Partners
Chartered Accountants

Masihul Huq Chowdhury Masud Khan, FCA, FCMA Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)

Nasir Uddin Ahmed, FCA, FCS, CGMA, ACMA (UK)
Deputy Managing Partner

DVC No: 2203270535AS471283
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Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars Note   2021 
 Taka 

20(a)
21(a)

Net interest income  788,951,247 

22(a)
23(a)
24(a)

Total operating income  1,532,708,719 

25(a)

26(a)
27(a)
28

29(a)
30(a)
31(a)
32(a)

Total operating expenses  1,015,308,681 
 517,400,038 

33.1(a)

33.2(a)
33.3(a)

Total provision 33(a)  286,055,262 
 231,344,776 

34.1(a)
34.2(a)

Total provision for Tax 34(a)  112,190,566 
 119,154,210 

 (194,082,236)
Appropriations

Retained surplus  (241,865,507)

Earnings per share 35(a)  0.24 

MABS & J Partners
Chartered Accountants

Masihul Huq Chowdhury Masud Khan, FCA, FCMA Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)

Nasir Uddin Ahmed, FCA, FCS, CGMA, ACMA (UK)
Deputy Managing Partner

DVC No: 2203270535AS471283
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Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Particulars Note   2021
Taka 

A.

 718,323,272 

Increase/decrease in operating assets and liabilities

 14,211,506,862 

B.

Net cash from investing activities  (8,600,547,801)

C.

 640,000,000 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 36(a)  11,140,616,365 
Cash and cash equivalents

Total  11,140,616,365 

 

Masihul Huq Chowdhury Masud Khan, FCA, FCMA Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)
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Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
Balance Sheet

Particulars Note   2021 
 Taka 

2020
Taka

PROPERTY AND ASSETS

Cash  3 

 3.1 

 3.2 

 4,048,404,436  2,263,713,063 

 4 

 4.1 

 4.2 

 6,951,926,629  1,085,009,941 

Money at call on short notice  5  140,000,000  1,540,000,000 

Investments  6 

 6.1 

 6.2 

 11,616,816,337  2,862,313,238 

Loans and Advances  7 

 7.1 

 7.2 

 43,224,711,086  19,496,492,080 

 8  1,176,596,230  1,204,001,586 

Other assets  9  1,192,596,355  603,981,361 

Total Assets  68,351,051,073  29,055,511,269 

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL

Liabilities

 11  1,946,728,899  - 

Deposits and other accounts  12 

 12.1 

 12.2 

 12.3 

 12.4 

 12.5 

 59,074,973,993  23,392,501,784 

Other liabilities  13  2,503,027,880  1,355,697,839 

Total Liabilities  63,524,730,772  24,748,199,623 

Capital / Shareholders’ Equity

 14.2 

 15 

 16 

 17 

Total Shareholders’ Equity  4,826,320,301  4,307,311,646 

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity  68,351,051,073  29,055,511,269 
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Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
Balance Sheet

Particulars Note   2021 
 Taka 

2020
Taka

Off-Balance Sheet Items

Contingent Liabilities 18

18.1

18.2

Irrevocable letters of Credit 18.3

18.4

Sub total  3,692,709,523  1,639,784,225 

Other Commitments

Sub total  -  - 

Total Off-Balance Sheet items including contingent liabilities  3,692,709,523  1,639,784,225 

MABS & J Partners
Chartered Accountants

Masihul Huq Chowdhury Masud Khan, FCA, FCMA Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)

Nasir Uddin Ahmed, FCA, FCS, CGMA, ACMA (UK)
Deputy Managing Partner

DVC No: 2203270535AS471283
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Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars Note   2021 
 Taka 

2020
Taka

20
21

Net interest income  782,731,895  514,878,999 
22
23
24

Total operating income  1,525,643,387  763,775,553 

25

26
27
28
29
30
31
32

Total operating expenses  1,010,042,813  852,932,150 
 515,600,574  (89,156,597)

Total provision 33  282,752,851  211,008,495 
 232,847,723  (300,165,092)

34.1
34.2

Total provision for tax  111,475,094  4,393,277 
 121,372,629  (304,558,369)

 (191,863,817)  (313,236,446)
Appropriations

Retained surplus  (239,647,088)  (313,236,446)
Earnings per share (EPS) 35  0.25  (0.74)

MABS & J Partners
Chartered Accountants

Masihul Huq Chowdhury Masud Khan, FCA, FCMA Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)

Nasir Uddin Ahmed, FCA, FCS, CGMA, ACMA (UK)
Deputy Managing Partner

DVC No: 2203270535AS471283
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Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
Cash Flow Statement

Particulars Note   2021 
 Taka 

  2020 
 Taka 

A.

37
38

 718,409,366  110,591,502 
Increase/Decrease in operating assets and liabilities

 14,298,409,356  1,722,165,217 

B.

Net cash from investing activities  (8,437,450,295)  (2,564,654,251)

C.

 390,000,000  610,000,000 

 (232,489,034)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 36  11,140,616,365  4,889,657,304 
Cash and cash equivalents

 

Total  11,140,616,365  4,889,657,304 

Masihul Huq Chowdhury Masud Khan, FCA, FCMA Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)
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1.0 Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

1.1 Legal form of Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

1.2 Principal activities

1.3 Subsidiary of the Bank

2.0

2.1

2.1.1  Statement of compliance

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited



Community Bank Annual Report 2021 communitybankbd.com

2.1.2 Use of estimates and judgments 

2.1.3

2.1.4 Liquidity statement 

2.1.5 Reporting period 

2.2 Assets and basis of their valuation 

2.2.1 Cash and cash equivalents 

2.2.2 Loans and Advances

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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Head Rate
General provision on:

0.25%
2%
1%
2%
2%
1%

Short term agri credit and micro credit 1%
Off-balance sheet exposures (excluding Bills for collection) 0.5%-1%

Substandard loans and advances other than short term agri credit and micro credit 20%
Doubtful loans and advances other than short term agri credit and micro credit 50%

100%
Substandard & Doubtful short term agri credit and micro credit 5%

100%
Provision for Cottage, Micro and Small credits under CMSME:( as BRPD Circular 06/2020)

0.25%
5%

20%
100%

2.2.3 Investments

Held to maturity (HTM) 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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Held for trading (HFT) 

Investment class Initial 
recognition

Measurement 
after initial 
recognition

Recording of changes

Cost

Cost
Increase in value of such 

Cost Cost
Cost Cost

REPO and reverse REPO

Investment in listed securities

Investment in unquoted securities

Investment in subsidiary

2.2.4 Property, plant and equipment 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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Rate

2.2.5 Intangible assets

to 

Core banking software of CBBL 

2.2.6 Impairment of Assets

2.2.7 Leases

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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The Bank as a lessee (Note 8)

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

 

2.2.8 Other assets 

2.2.9 Non-banking assets 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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2.2.10 Reconciliation of inter-bank and inter-branch account 

2.3 Share Capital 

2.3.1 Authorised Capital 

2.3.2 Paid up Capital 

2.4 Statutory reserve

2.5 Contingent liabilities 

2.6 Deposits and other accounts 

2.7

2.8 Other liabilities

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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2.9 Basis for valuation of liabilities and provisions 

2.9.1 Provision for current taxation 

2.9.2 Deferred taxation 

2.9.3

a) Provident fund 

b) Gratuity fund 

2.9.4 Provision for liabilities 

2.9.5 Provision for Off-balance sheet exposures

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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2.10 Revenue recognition 

2.10.1 Interest income 

2.10.2 Investment income 

2.10.3 Fees and commission income 

2.10.4 Dividend income on shares 

2.10.5 Interest paid on borrowings, deposits and others

2.11 Risk management 

2.12 Core risk management 

2.12.1 Credit risk 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited



Community Bank Annual Report 2021 communitybankbd.com

2.12.2 Foreign exchange risk 

2.12.3 Asset liability management 

2.12.4 Money laundering risk 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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2.12.5 Internal control and compliance risk 

2.12.6 Information and communication technology 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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2.12.7 Liquidity risk 

2.12.8 Market risk 

Foreign exchange risk 

Interest rate risk 

2.12.9 Operational risk

2.13 Earnings per share 

2.14 Events after the reporting period 

2.15 Related party transaction 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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2.16 Departures from IASs/IFRSs

ii) Investment in shares and Securities

iv) Provision on loans and advances

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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v) Other comprehensive income

vi) Financial instruments – presentation and disclosure

vii) Repo transactions

viii) Financial guarantees

ix) Cash and cash equivalent

x) Non-banking asset

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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xii) Balance with Bangladesh Bank (CRR)

2.17 The Bank’s compliance with related pronouncements by Bangladesh Bank 

i) Internal Control 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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ii) Internal Audit

iii) Fraud and Forgeries

2.18 Approval of Financial Statements
th

th

2.19 General

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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Particulars Note 2021
Taka

2020
Taka

3 Cash 

 4,048,404,436  2,263,713,063 

3.1 Cash in hand

 1,086,583,556  930,860,014 

3.1(a) Consolidated Cash in hand

 1,086,583,556  - 

3.2 Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank(s)

 2,961,820,880  1,332,853,049 

3.2(b) Consolidated Balance with Bangladesh Bank and its agent bank

 2,961,820,880  - 

3.3 Cash Reserve Requirement (CRR) and Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR) 

3.3.1 Cash Reserve Requirement (CRR)

Daily basis 

 448,720,499  758,003,116 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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Particulars Note 2021
Taka

2020
Taka

Bi-weekly basis

3.3.2 Statutory Liquidity Ratio (SLR)

 1,367,178,544  1,690,698,302 
Total surplus  1,815,899,042  2,448,701,419 

3.3.3 Actual reserve held 
Cash in hand

 6 
 6 

 9,998,598,744  3,758,313,202 

 3.3.3.a Excess balance with Bangladesh Bank

 116,742,799  678,479,466 

4

 6,951,926,629  1,085,009,941 
4.1 In Bangladesh

Current accounts

 38,315,961  24,422,257 
Short notice deposit (SND) accounts

 6,753,596,258  107,935,220 
Fixed deposit with Banks

 -  100,000,000 
Fixed deposit with Financial Institutions

 150,000,000  850,000,000 
 6,941,912,219  1,082,357,477 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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Particulars Note 2021
Taka

2020
 Taka

4.2 Outside Bangladesh (NOSTRO Accounts)
Current account

 10,014,410  2,652,464 

4.3

 6,951,926,629  1,085,009,941 

4(a)

4.1(a) In Bangladesh

 6,941,912,219  - 

4.2(a) Outside Bangladesh

 10,014,410  - 

 6,951,926,629  - 

5 Money at call on short notice

 140,000,000  1,540,000,000 

5.1 Maturity grouping of money at call on short notice

 140,000,000  1,540,000,000 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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5(a) Consolidated Money at call on short notice

 140,000,000  - 

6 Investments

 11,616,816,337  2,862,313,238 

 11,616,816,337  2,862,313,238 

6.1 Government securities

 8,795,272,389  2,148,973,722 

6.1.1 Treasury bills

 356,735,503  69,999,650 

6.1.2 Treasury bonds

 8,438,251,586  2,078,039,772 

6.2 Other investments

6.2.1 Preference shares

 866,250,000  330,000,000 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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6.2.2 Investment in Corporate bonds (issued by other banks and institutions)
a) Subordinated Bonds
Under Conventional Banking

b) Islamic Bond

c) Perpetual Bonds
Under Conventional Banking

Under Islamic Banking

 1,600,000,000  200,000,000 
6.2.3 Investments in ordinary shares

 314,656,474  168,339,520 
6.2.4 Investments in mutual fund 

 39,999,974  14,999,996 
6.2.5 Investments for IPO and private placement

 637,500  - 

 2,821,543,948  713,339,516 

6.3 Maturity wise grouping of investment

 11,616,816,337  2,862,313,238

6.4 (i) Disclosure regarding outstanding repo

Counterparty name Agreement 
date Reversal date  Amount  Amount 

Total

(ii) Disclosure regarding outstanding reverse repo

Counterparty name Agreement 
date Reversal date  Amount  Amount 

Total

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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6.5 Disclosure regarding overall transaction of repo and reverse repo

Counterparty name

Minimum 
Outstanding 
during the 

year

Maximum 
outstanding 
during the 

year

 Daily average 
outstanding 

during the year 

 Daily average 
outstanding 

previous year 

Securities sold under repo

 - 

Securities purchased under reverse repo

6(a) Consolidated Investments
6.1(a) Government Securities

 8,795,272,389  - 
6.2(a) Other investments

 2,982,798,724  - 
 11,778,071,113  - 

7 Loans and advances

 43,224,711,086  19,496,492,080 

7.1 Loans, cash credits, overdrafts etc.

Credit Card

 43,188,295,666  19,480,817,983 

7.2 Bills purchased and discounted

 36,415,420  15,674,097 

7.3 Net loans and advances

 42,759,150,170  19,294,147,679 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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7.4 Maturity wise grouping of loans and advances

 43,224,711,086  19,496,492,080 
7.5 Loans and advances under the following broad categories

In Bangladesh

Cash credits

Outside Bangladesh

Cash credits

 43,224,711,086  19,496,492,080 
7.6 Geographical location wise portfolio grouping

In Bangladesh

 43,224,711,086  19,496,492,080 
Outside Bangladesh

 43,224,711,086  19,496,492,080 
7.7

Staff

Industries

 43,224,711,086  19,496,492,080 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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7.8 Staff loan

Car loans

 89,593,756  80,941,048 
7.9 Detail of large loans and advances

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 

SL 
No.

Group 
name Name of clients

Outstanding
 Total  Total 

Funded  Non-funded 

 1 

 552,632,797  -  552,632,797 

Subtotal  384,003,493  222,509,524  606,513,017 

6

7

8

Subtotal  418,169,044  234,500,000  652,669,044 

11

Subtotal  568,938,041  56,034,556  624,972,597 

Subtotal  495,565,846  693,600,082 1,189,165,928  1,100,623,420 

Subtotal  634,081,871  -  634,081,871 

Total 6,280,969,662 2,570,004,890 8,850,974,552  2,611,263,747 
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Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 

7.10

 43,207,615,925  19,496,492,080 

 17,095,161  - 

 43,224,711,086  19,496,492,080 

7.11 Sector-wise allocation of loans and advances

Government  -  - 

Private

 43,224,711,086  19,496,492,080 

7.12 Securities against loans/advances including bills purchased and discounted

 43,224,711,086  19,496,492,080 
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7.13 Particulars of required provisions for loans and advances

 Particulars 
Outstanding 

balance as at 31 
December 2021 

 Base for 
provision 

Percentage 
of required 
provision 

Required 
provision  

December 
2021

Required 
provision 

December 
2020

  

Sub total  452,662,461  199,928,457 

Sub total  3,881,139  - 

 456,543,600  199,928,457 

 464,407,005  202,344,401 

 7,863,405  2,415,944 

* BHs = Brokerage Houses, MBs = Merchant Banks, SDs = Stock Dealers Against Shares

7.14 Particulars of required provisions for off balance sheet exposures - General Provision

 Particulars 

 Outstanding 
balance as at 
31 December 

2021 

 Base for 
provision 

 Percentage 
of required 
provision 

Required 
provision  

December 
2021

Required 
provision 

December 
2020

 15,552,853 

 634,758 

 36,391,857  16,187,611 

 36,391,857  16,201,609 

 -  13,998 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
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7.15 Particulars of loans and advances

 43,224,711,086  19,496,492,080 

7.16

7(a) Consolidated Loans and advances

7.1(a) Loans and advances

 43,188,295,666  - 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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7.2(a) Bills purchased and discounted

 43,224,711,086  - 

8
Cost of Property plant and equipments:

Intangible assets

 759,686,260  666,514,322 
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization

 556,216,153  580,330,789 
Lease assets-Premises

Net book value at the end of the year  1,176,596,230  1,204,001,586 

8(a)

 1,177,533,012  - 

9 Other assets

9.1 Income generating other assets

Interest receivables

 872,346,733  412,397,505 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 



Community Bank Annual Report 2021communitybankbd.com

9.1.1 Interest receivables 

 587,598,911  153,771,418 

9.2 Non income generating other assets

 320,249,622  191,583,856 
Total other assets    1,192,596,355  603,981,361 

9.2.1 Advance payment of income tax

 124,489,299  71,080,887 

9.2.2 Deferred tax
a. Deferred tax asset

Tax rate

 (60,921,582)  (29,629,633)

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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b. Deferred tax liability 

Tax base

Tax rate

Tax base

Tax rate

 36,382,253  26,841,480 

9.2.3

 -  9,045,302 
9(a) Consolidated other assets

 1,233,901,613  - 

 983,637,229 -

10 Non-banking assets
 -  - 

11
Call borrowings from banks

Short notice borrowings from banks

 1,946,728,899  - 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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11(a)

 1,946,728,899  - 

12 Deposit and other accounts
Current accounts and other accounts

Total deposit and other accounts  59,074,973,993  23,392,501,784 

12.1 Current accounts and other accounts

 11,033,807,756  4,548,438,137 
12.2 Bills payable

 1,004,643,268  391,827,174 
12.3 Saving bank deposits

 9,924,705,391  7,430,012,847 
12.4 Fixed deposits

 37,110,711,075  11,020,956,875 
12.5 Other deposits

 1,106,503  1,266,751 
12.6 Deposits and other accounts of the Bank

 

 59,074,973,993  23,392,501,784 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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12.6.1 Deposits from Banks and FIs

 927,827  2,036,037,678 

12.6.1a Special notice deposits from FIs

 927,827  1,486,037,678 

12.6.1b Fixed deposits from Banks

 -  550,000,000 

12.6.2 Deposits from customers
Current accounts and other accounts

 59,074,046,166  21,356,464,106 
12.7 Deposit details concentrating liquidity nature

i) Demand deposit

 9,452,163,214  2,129,615,420 
ii) Time deposit

 49,622,810,779  21,262,886,364 
 59,074,973,993  23,392,501,784 

12.8 Maturity analysis of deposits
a) Maturity analysis of deposits from Banks and FIs

 927,827  2,036,037,678 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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b) Maturity analysis of customer deposits

 59,074,046,166  21,356,464,106 
 59,074,973,993  23,392,501,784 

12(a) Consolidated Deposits and other accounts
12.1(a) Current accounts and other accounts

 11,005,272,285  - 

12.2(a) Bills payable

12.3(a) Savings bank deposits

 9,924,705,391  - 
12.4(a) Fixed deposits

 37,090,711,075  - 
12.5(a) Other deposits

 59,026,438,522  - 
13 Other liabilities 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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 2,503,027,880  1,355,697,839 

13.1 Provision for loans and advances

Provisions held at the end of the year  460,362,345  202,242,051 

Total provision held at the end of the year (A+B)  464,304,655  202,242,051 

13.2 Special general provision for Covid-19

Provisions held at the end of the year  102,350  102,350 

13.3 Provision for off-balance sheet exposures

Provision held at the end of the year  36,391,856  16,201,609 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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13.4 Provisions for diminution in value of Investments

Provision held at the end of the year  500,000  - 

13.5 Other provisions

Provision held at the end of the year  -  - 

13.6 Provision for current taxation
Current tax expense

Balance at the end of the year  156,747,668  20,733,245 

13.7 Payable against preliminary expenses

 41,656,259  41,656,259 

13.8 Payable to Bangladesh Police Kallyan Trust (BPKT)

 38,311,329  38,311,329 

13(a) Consolidated Other liabilities

 2,507,014,202 -

14 Share capital

14.1 Authorized capital

 10,000,000,000  10,000,000,000 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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14.2 Issued, subscribed and fully paid up capital
14.2.1

 5,000,000,000  4,610,000,000 

14.2.1 Issued, subscribed and fully paid up capital

Closing balance at the end of the year  5,000,000,000  4,610,000,000 

14.3 Ordinary shares
No. of Shares  % of shareholding 2021  % of shareholding 2020 

 7 
 500,000,000 100% 100%

14.4

Range of holding of shares  No. of 
Shareholders 

 No. of 
Shares 

 % of holding of 
Shares 2021 

 % of holding of 
Shares 2020 

 7  7 

 1 
Total  8  500,000,000 100% 100%

14.5 Capital to risk weighted assets ratio (CRAR): 
Common equity tier -1 capital

 4,816,251,672  4,306,092,769 
Less: Adjustments as per regulation 

 159,000,640  177,243,619 
Total tier-1 capital  4,657,251,032  4,128,849,150 
Tier -2 capital 

 496,856,551  218,546,010 
Less: Adjustments as per regulation 

 -  - 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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Total tier-2 capital  496,856,551  218,546,010 
A. Total regulatory capital  5,154,107,583  4,347,395,160 

 2,485,992,035  2,733,201,486 

Capital to risk weighted assets ratio (CRAR)

17.46% 25.58%

19.32% 26.93%

14.5(a) Consolidated capital to risk-weighted asset (CRAR):
Common equity tier -1 capital

 4,814,033,253  - 
Less: Adjustments as per regulation 

 159,000,640  - 
Total tier-1 capital  4,655,032,613  - 
Tier -2 capital 

 496,856,551  - 
Less: Adjustments as per regulation 

 -  - 
Total tier-2 capital  496,856,551  - 
A. Total regulatory capital  5,151,889,164  - 

 2,489,203,218  - 

Capital to risk weighted assets ratio (CRAR):
17.48% 0.00%

19.35% 0.00%

15 Statutory reserve

 55,898,760  9,329,215 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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16 Revaluation reserve

 10,068,629  1,218,877 
 16.1 Revaluation reserve on govt. securities

 8,709,168  1,215,903 
 16.2 Amortization  reserve on govt. securities

 1,359,461  2,974 

17

Transfer to 
 (239,647,088)  (313,236,446)

17(a)
 

 (241,865,507) -

18 Contingent liabilities

Irrevocable letters of credit

 3,692,709,523  1,639,784,225 

18.1 Acceptance and endorsements

 -  - 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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18.2 Letters of guarantee

 2,456,592,242  1,555,285,315 

 2,456,592,242  1,555,285,315 

18.3 Irrevocable letters of credit

 1,182,593,425  63,475,846 
18.4 Bills for collection

 53,523,856  21,023,064 

19 Income statement
Income

 3,938,869,779  1,196,905,105 
Expenses

 3,423,269,205  1,286,061,702 
 515,600,574  (89,156,597)

19.1 Interest, discount and similar income
Interest on loans and advances

Interest on subordinated bond

 3,615,392,311  1,069,662,327 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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19.2 Fees, commission and brokerage

 119,227,135  59,248,368 
19.3 Administrative expenses

 727,667,571  613,712,476 

20 Interest income 
Interest on loans and advances 

 3,195,958,287  948,008,551 

20(a) Consolidated Interest income

 3,196,510,810  - 

21 Interest paid on deposits and borrowings 
Interest on current accounts

 2,413,226,392  433,129,552 
21(a) Consolidated Interest paid on deposits and borrowings 

 2,407,559,563  - 
22 Investment income

Interest on subordinated bond

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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 621,918,535  188,842,131 
22(a) Consolidated investment income

 622,764,515  - 

23 Commission, exchange and brokerage 

 119,247,080  59,268,313 
23.1 Service fees and charges

 59,538,052  45,803,470 
23(a) Consolidated commission, exchange and brokerage

 119,247,080  - 
24 Other operating income

 1,745,877  786,110 
24(a) Consolidated other operating income

 1,745,877  - 
25 Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc.

 178,625,608  133,595,297 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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25.1

 118,390,574  89,126,855 

25(a) Consolidated rent, taxes, insurance, electricity etc.

 179,177,775  - 

26 Postage, stamp, telecommunication etc

 12,933,594  16,440,819 
26(a) Consolidated postage, stamps, telecommunication etc.

 12,948,709  - 
27 Stationery, printing, advertisement etc.

 13,364,928  32,739,795 
27(a) Consolidated stationery, printing, advertisements etc.

 13,367,043  - 
28 Chief Executive’s salary and fees

 16,724,700  15,558,700 
29 Directors’ fees and expenses

 1,315,600  1,222,226 
29(a) Consolidated Directors’ fees

 1,591,600  - 
30 Auditors’ fees

 442,750  470,063 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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30(a) Consolidated Auditors fees

 471,500  - 

31 Depreciation on and repairs to bank’s assets
Depreciation of property plant and equipments*

Amortization of intangible assets

 117,294,212  67,973,190 
Repairs and maintenance expenses

 57,249,850  50,335,898 
 174,544,062  118,309,088 

31(a) Consolidated depreciation and repairs of Bank’s assets

 174,645,009  - 

32 Other expenses

Utensils
IT enabled services

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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 165,081,030  171,246,484 
32(a) Consolidated other expenses

 166,969,223  - 
33 Provision

 282,752,851  211,008,495 
33(a) Consolidated provision for loans and advances and investments

33.1(a) For loans and advances

 262,062,604  - 
33.2(a) For off balance sheet items

 20,190,247  - 
33.3(a) For diminution in value of Investments

 286,055,262  - 
34 Provision for taxation

34.1 Current tax expense

 136,014,423  7,181,430 
34.2 Deferred tax expense/(income)

 (24,539,329)  (2,788,153)
34(a) Consolidated provision for taxation

34.1(a) Current tax expense

 136,708,313  - 
34.2(a) Deferred tax expense/(income) (net)

 112,190,566  - 

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 
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Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars  Note  2021
 Taka 

2020
 Taka 

35 Earnings per share

 0.25  (0.74)

35(a) Consolidated earnings per share

 0.24  - 

36 Cash and cash equivalent

 11,140,616,365  4,889,657,304 

36(a) Consolidated cash and cash equivalent

 11,140,616,365  - 

37 Receipts from other operating activities

 1,748,377  786,110 

38 Payment for other operating activities

 402,723,946  355,537,715 

38(a) Consolidated Payment for other operating activities
 - 
 - 

 405,223,784  - 
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39 General disclosure
39.1 Audit committee

Sl no Name of Director Status with the 
Bank

Status with the 
Committee

Educational 

Facts Discussed

39.2 Related party/(ies) transactions

Sl 
no.

Name of the Related 
Parties Relationship Nature of transactions Transaction 

amount 2021
Transaction 

amount 2020

1

6

7

8
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Sl 
no.

Name of the Related 
Parties Relationship Nature of transactions Transaction 

amount 2021
Transaction 

amount 2020

11

ii) Name of Directors and the entities in which they have interest as on 31 December 2021

Sl 
no. Name of Director

Status 
with The 

Bank
companies in which they 

have interest

Educational 

1

 

 

6

7

8

11
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39.3 Claim not acknowledged as debt

39.4 Number of employees

39.5 Post balance sheet events
th

Masihul Huq Chowdhury Masud Khan, FCA, FCMA Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)
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Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
Highlights on the overall activities

Sl no. Particulars 2021 2020

1

6 Total loans and advances 

7

8

11

Cost of fund

16

17

18
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Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
Reconciliation statement of balance with bangladesh bank

Particulars Detail Total

Balance as per Bank ledger

 2,797,686,701 

Balance as per Bangladesh Bank statement  2,797,686,701 

Balance as per Bank ledger

Balance as per Bangladesh Bank statement  164,134,179 
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Annexure - D

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited
Investment in Shares

 Sl. 
no Name of the company Face 

value
No. of 
shares

Cost of 
holding

Average 
cost

Quoted 
rate per 

share as on 
31.12.2021

Total 
market 

value as at 
31.12.2021

Quoted 

1

Total  32,917,748  33,604,831 

Quoted under Special Fund for Capital Market (SFCM)*

1

6

7

8

11

Total  81,738,725 

Total Quoted Shares 314,656,473 

Unquoted

Mutual Fund - Non listed

1

Total  39,999,974  40,039,687 

Preference shares

1

6

Total 866,250,000 
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Community Bank Bangladesh Limited

Particulars Note   2021 
 Taka 

  2020 
 Taka 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Net cash from operating activities  14,298,409,356  1,722,165,217 

Annexure - F
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Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Community 
Bank Investment Limited (the “Company”) which comprise 
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 
2021, and the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity 
and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the Company as at 31 December 2021, and of its 
financial performance and its cash flows for the year 
then ended in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as explained in note 3.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the IESBA Code and the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) Bye Laws. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other matters

This is the first year of operation of the Company hence 
no comparative information is available.

Responsibilities of Management and   
Those Charged with Governance for the 
Financial Statements and Internal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements of the Company in 
accordance with IFRSs as explained in note 3, Companies 
Act 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and 
for such internal control as management determines 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing these financial statements, management 
is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to 
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control. 

Evaluate  the  appropriateness  of  accounting  
policies  used  and  the  reasonableness  of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s 
use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Shareholders of Community Bank Investment Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Annexure - G
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a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements 
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Company’s to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and 
content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 

including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994 and the 
Securities and Exchange Rules 2020, we also report that:

(i) we have obtained all the information and explanations 
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due 
verification thereof;

(ii) in our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company’s so far as it 
appeared from our examination of those books; and

(iii) the statement of financial position and statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income 
together with the annexed notes dealt with by the 
report are in agreement with the books of account 
and returns.

Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh
Date: 27 March 2022 
DVC:2203300770AS408827

Sabbir Ahmed FCA, Partner
Enrolment no: 770
Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants
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Community Bank Investment Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2021

Particualrs Note Figures in Taka
2021

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4  936,783 
Investments in bond 5  57,211,566 
Total non-current assets  58,148,349 
Current assets
Trading investment in quoted shares 6  104,043,210 
Balance with  Sheltech Brokerage Ltd. 8  38,031,731 
Accounts receivable 9  1,506,637 
Advances, deposits and prepayments 10  1,766,890 
Cash and cash equivalents 11  48,535,471 
Total current assets  193,883,939 
Total assets  252,032,288 

Equity and liabilities
Share capital 12  250,000,000 
Retained earnings/(accumulated losses)  (2,218,419)
Total equity  247,781,581 

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liability 7  21,582 
Total non-current liabilities  21,582 
Current liabilities and provisions
Accounts payable 13  176,272 
Other liabilities 14  56,552 
Provision for diminution in value of investments 6  3,302,411 
Provision for taxation 15  693,890 
Total current liabilities  4,229,125 
Total equity and liabilities  252,032,288 

Net asset value per share of Tk. 10 each  9.91 

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes.

Managing Director & CEO
Md. Mominul Hoque, CFA

Director
Masihul Huq Chowdhury

Director
Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM

Chairman
Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)

Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh
Date: 27 March 2022 
DVC: 2203300770AS408827

Sabbir Ahmed FCA, Partner
Enrolment No: 770
Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants
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Community Bank Investment Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Particulars Note  Figures in Taka 
2021

Operating income
Interest income 16  - 
Income from investment 17  1,662,887 
Service income 18  - 
Total operating income  1,662,887 
Other income 19  5,402,445 
Total income  7,065,332 
Operating expenses
Salaries and allowances 20  2,402,581 
Rent, taxes, insurance, utilities, etc 21  552,167 
Repairs, maintenance and depreciation 22  100,947 
Stationery, printing and advertising 23  2,115 
Postage, stamp and telecommunication 24  15,115 
Audit fee  28,750 
Directors’ remuneration  276,000 
Legal and professional fees  143,073 
Other expenses 25  1,745,120 
Total operating expenses  5,265,868 
Operating profit  1,799,464 
Finance expense 26  - 
Profit before provision  1,799,464 
Provision for diminution in value of investments 6  3,302,411 
Profit /(loss) before tax  (1,502,947)
Income tax expense
Current tax expenses 15  693,890 
Deferred tax expenses 7  21,582 
Profit for the year  (2,218,419)
Other comprehensive income  - 

Total comprehensive income  (2,218,419)

Earnings Per Share (EPS)  (0.09)

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes.

Managing Director & CEO
Md. Mominul Hoque, CFA

Director
Masihul Huq Chowdhury

Director
Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM

Chairman
Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)

Place: Dhaka, Bangladesh
Date: 27 March 2022 
DVC: 2203300770AS408827

Sabbir Ahmed FCA, Partner
Enrolment No: 770
Hoda Vasi Chowdhury & Co
Chartered Accountants
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Community Bank Investment Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Particulars
Share capital  

Taka

Retained 
earnings/

(accumulated 
losses)
 Taka

Total 
Taka

Capital raised on 30 December 2020  250,000,000  -  250,000,000 

Profit/(loss) for the year  -  (2,218,419)  (2,218,419)

Balance at 31 December 2021  250,000,000  (2,218,419)  247,781,581 

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes.

Managing Director & CEO
Md. Mominul Hoque, CFA

Director
Masihul Huq Chowdhury

Director
Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM

Chairman
Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)
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Community Bank Investment Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2021

Particulars
Figures in Taka

2021

A. Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit after income tax  (2,218,419)

Add / (Subtract) Items that Affect Net Income and Cash Flow Differently:

Depreciation and Amortization  100,947 

Decrease or (Increase) in Trading investment in quoted shares  (104,043,210)

Decrease or (Increase) in Balance with  Sheltech Brokerage Ltd.  (38,031,731)

Decrease or (Increase) in Accounts receivable  (1,506,637)

Decrease or (Increase) in Advances, deposits and prepayments  (1,766,890)

Increase or (Decrease) in Accounts payable  176,272 

Increase or (Decrease) in Other liabilities  56,552 

Increase or (Decrease) in Provision for taxation  693,890 

Increase or (Decrease) in Provision for diminution in value of investments  3,302,411 

Increase or (Decrease) in Deferred tax liability  21,582 

Net cash (used)/flows from operating activities  (143,215,233)

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Investment in zero coupon bond  (57,211,566)

Acquisition of property plant and equipment  (1,037,729)

Net cash from investing activities  (58,249,295)

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Issuance of share capital  250,000,000 

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities  250,000,000 

D. Net changes in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  48,535,471 

E. Opening cash and cash equivalents  - 

F. Closing cash and cash equivalents  48,535,471 

These financial statements should be read in conjunction with the annexed notes.

Managing Director & CEO
Md. Mominul Hoque, CFA

Director
Masihul Huq Chowdhury

Director
Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM

Chairman
Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)
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Community Bank Investment Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2021
1 Reporting entity
1.1 Company profile

Community Bank Investment Limited (the Company), a fully owned subsidiary of The Community Bank 
Bangladesh Limited, is a Private company limited by shares. The Company was incorporated in Bangladesh 
on 30 December 2020 vide registration no. C-167238/2020 under the Companies Act 1994. Subsequently 
the Company obtained Merchant Banking License (Registration Certificate No: MB-98/2021) from Bangladesh 
Securities & Exchange Commission on 28 June 2021. Registered office of the Merchant Bank is located at 
Police Plaza Concord, (Level 12, Tower 2), Plot - 2, Road - 144, Gulshan - 1,  Dhaka - 1212.

1.2 Nature of business

Community Bank Investment Limited delivers a wide range of investment banking services such as issue 
management, underwriting, portfolio management and corporate advisory and other services as mentioned in 
the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the company.

2 Basis of accounting

2.1 Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS), as well as applicable requirements of the Companies Act 1994, Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission (Merchant Banker and Portfolio Manager) Rules 1996 and other applicable laws and regulations. 
In case any rules and regulations issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission differs from 
those of other regulatory authorities, the rules and regulations issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange 
Commission shall prevail.

2.2 Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting following going concern concept 
under historical cost convention except for financial instruments which are measured at fair value.

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka (BDT), which is both functional and presentation 
currency of the Company.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgment

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised 
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period of revision and future 
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Critical estimates and judgements applied are 
relating to impairment provision and income tax.

2.5 Reporting period

Although the Company has incorporated on 30 December 2020 but considering that the financial year of the 
Company starts from 1 January and no activities took place during the intervening period of 30 December 
to 31 December 2020, theses financial statements cover the period from 1 January to 31 December 2021. 
Therefore, on the ground of ‘Relevance’ or ‘Materiality’, no comparative information is provided.

2.6 Date of authorisation

The audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 were authorised by the Board of 
Directors on 27 March 2022
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2.7 Components of financial statements

3 Significant accounting policies
The accounting policies set out below will be applied consistently (otherwise as stated) to all periods presented 
in these financial statements.

3.1 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost and subsequently at cost less  
accumulated depreciation in compliance with International Accounting Standard (IAS) 16 “Property, Plant and 
Equipment”. The cost of acquisition of an asset comprises its purchase price and any direct cost for bringing 
the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Expenditures incurred after the assets have been put 
into use, such as repairs and maintenance is normally charged off as revenue expenditure in the period in 
which it is incurred. When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Subsequent cost
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the 
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the company and its cost 
can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in 
the profit and loss account as incurred.
Depreciation
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount 
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the company 
and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to- day servicing of property, plant and equipment are 
recognised in the profit and loss account as incurred.
The rates at which property, plant and equipment are depreciated for current year is as follows:

Category of assets Rate of depreciation

Furniture and fixtures 10%

IT Hardware 20%

Office equipment 20%

Disposal
Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are to be determined by comparing 
the proceeds from disposal  with  the  carrying  amount  of  the  property,  plant  and  equipment  disposed  
off  and  will be  recognised  net  with  “other operational income” in profit or loss statement.

3.2 Leases
IFRS 16 (Leases) introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee 
recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability 
representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases 
and leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard- i.e. lessors continue 
to classify leases as finance or operating leases. However, this new standard has no material impact on 
the reported number presented in these financial statements considering the rented premise is low value 
considering the overall financial position.
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3.3 Registration fees and amortisation
Registration fees paid for five years which is initially recognised at cost. It will be measured  and reported in 
financial statement at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortization expenses are to be recognized at 
profit and loss statement until wash out the total registration cost. The Company has decided to absorb the 
registration fees within five years i.e.  at a rate of 20% on straight line basis.

3.4 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability 
or equity instrument of another entity. Non- derivative financial instruments comprise investments in trading 
securities, margin loans, receivables, cash and cash equivalents, term loans, trade payables, customer 
deposits and share capital.

3.4.1 Financial assets
Financial assets refer to assets that arise from contractual agreements on future cash flows or from owning 
equity instruments of another entity.
The company initially recognises receivables and deposits on the date when they are originated. All other financial 
assets are recognised initially on the date at which the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the transaction.
The company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights or probabilities of receiving the 
cash from the assets expires, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows from the financial 
assets in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are 
transferred.
Financial assets include financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), financial assets at fair value 
through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), financial assets at amortised cost, margin loans, cash and 
cash equivalents, accounts receivable.
IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some 
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement. IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at 
amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through profit and loss 
(FVTPL). The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in which 
a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. IFRS 9 eliminates the previous IAS 
39 categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale. The Company holds investment 
securities which are strategically held and actively traded in a quoted market and those which are unquoted.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Investment in quoted securities (such as stock/ shares, bonds) are securities those are officially listed (quoted) 
on a stock exchange for public trading. They are measured at fair value and subsequent to initial measurement 
any fall in value of investment below cost is recognised at profit or loss and a reserve for the fall in value is 
created.
Investment in shares which are not actively traded in a quoted market are measured at fair value unless the fair 
value can not be measured reliably, in which case they are measured at cost.
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
These equity securities represent investments that the Company intends to hold for the long term for 
strategic purposes. As permitted by IFRS 9, the Company has designated these investments at the date of 
initial application as measured at FVOCI. Unlike IAS 39, the accumulated fair value reserve related to these 
investments will never be reclassified to profit or loss. Before the changes to IFRS 9: Financial Instruments, 
the Company was presenting these investment in available for sale category. The gain/loss arising from the 
changes in fair value have been put in other comprehensive income.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise cash at bank in SND account and FDR with Community Bank 
Bangladesh Limited and there was no risk of changes in value of these current assets.
Accounts receivables
Accounts receivables are recognised at original invoiced amount.
Margin loan
Margin loan is provided to clients to facilitate investment in equity securities. They are initially classified as 
financial assets at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost. The company has no margin loan 
during the reporting period.
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3.4.2 Financial liabilities
A contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial assets to another entity or to exchange financial 
instruments with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable.
The company initially recognises financial liabilities on the transaction date at which the Entity becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the liability. The Entity recognises such financial liability when its contractual 
obligations arising from past events are certain and the settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow 
from the entity of resources embodying benefits.
The Entity derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, 
or expired. Financial liabilities as presented in these financial statements comprise loans and borrowings, 
accounts payable and other payables.
Loans and borrowings
Loans and borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequently, the 
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using effective interest method.
Accounts payable
Accounts payables are recognised at fair value.
Offsetting financial assets and a financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial 
position when, and only when, the entity has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends either to settle 
them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.5 Revenue recognition
The Company has adopted IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers from 1st January 2018. IFRS 
15 deals with revenue recognition and establishes principles for reporting useful information to users of 
financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from 
an entity´s contracts with customers. Revenue is recognised when an entity fulfills the performance obligations 
regarding the contract of supplying the goods or rendering of service. The standard replaces all existing 
requirements of IAS 18: Revenue and IAS 11: Construction contracts and related interpretations. The standard 
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018 thus the company adopted IFRS 15 with a 
date of the said initial application.
It has been assessed that the implementation of IFRS 15 is not likely to have any significant impact on the 
financial statements. Management has assessed impact of IFRS 15 on the different agreement types that are 
used in company’s business areas, most of the components are long-term in nature. Revenue from the contracts 
are recognised over the time if the service obligation satisfies over the time. No retrospective application has 
been made as due impact of adopting IFRS 15 does not affect the revenue recognised till date.
Interest income on margin loan
Income from interest on margin loan is recognised on an accrual basis. Such income is calculated based on 
daily margin loan balance of the respective margin loan holder’s account. However, CBIL has no such income.
Fees and commission income
Fees and commission income are recognised when the corresponding services are provided. Fees and 
commission income presented in the financial statements generally include the following:
i)   Management fee is charged on client’s portfolio value (at market price) on daily basis at the applicable rate
ii)  Settlement fee charged to customers’ trading in the secondary capital market;
iii) Documentation fees charged to clients for opening accounts with the company; and
iv) Income from advisory is recognised when a service is rendered in line with the related agreement.
Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established. Usually this is the record date 
for dividend declaration of equity securities.
Investment income
Income on investments is recognised on accrual basis. Investment income includes interest on zero coupon 
bond and fixed deposit with CBBL. 
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3.6 Taxation
Income tax expense is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. Current 
tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. Current tax has 
been calculated on the basis of Finance Act, 2021.

3.7 Deferred Tax
Deferred tax has been calculated based on the difference between the carrying amount of an asset or liability 
in the statement of financial position and its carrying amount by the tax authority; tax bases, that will be 
reversed in future, and where the change in the value of asset or liability has a tax consequence. This may 
result in either deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities in the financial statement of the company.

3.8 Provisions
A provision is recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

3.9 Contingencies
Contingencies arising from claims, litigations, assessments, fines, penalties, etc are recorded when it is 
probable that a liability would be created and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

3.10 Events after reporting period
Events after the reporting period that provide additional information about the company’s position at the 
reporting period are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting period that are not 
adjusting event are disclosed in the note when material.
No material event had occurred after the reporting period, which could substantially effect the values reported 
in these financial statements.

3.11 Defined contribution plan- provident fund
Defined contribution plan-provident fund is benefit plan where the entity pays fixed contributions into a separate 
entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold 
sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to their service. The company has no such fund in the year 
2021.

3.12 Defined benefit plan-gratuity
Defined benefit plan-gratuity is post-employment benefit where entity guarantees a particular level of pension 
benefit to its employees upon retirement. The company has no such benefit plan in the year 2021. 

3.13 COVID 19
The adverse impact of COVID 19 which started in previous financial year continued to affect the business of 
the Company during the current financial period. To contain the spread of subsequent waves of COVID 19, 
Government has taken various measures including extended lock down, closure of business, restriction in 
people movement, social distancing etc. As a result of these measures as well as prevailing global situation, all 
business and economic activities are adversely affected which also impacted the Company. Impact from these 
COVID 19 related events that has occurred are already reflected in these financial statements. However, due to 
the inherent uncertainty associated with such matter it is not possible to reasonably assessed and quantify any 
potential impact of COVID 19 related matters on the Company’s future operation and financial results.

3.14 Standards issued but not yet effective
A number of new standards and amendments to standards are effective for annual periods beginning after 1 
January 2021 and earlier application is permitted. However, the Company has not early applied the following 
new standards in preparing these financial statements.
IFRS 17 Insurance contract
IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 and applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2023. IFRS 17 establishes the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of 
insurance contracts within the scope of the standard. The objective of IFRS 17 is to ensure that an entity 
provides relevant information that faithfully represents those contracts. The Company has not yet assessed 
potential impact of IFRS 17 on its financial statements.
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Particulars 2021

5 INVESTMETN IN BOND
Opening balance  - 
Add: New investment during the year  57,211,566 
Closing Balance  57,211,566 

The Company has made investment of Tk. 57,211,566 in a zero coupon bond issued by Thengamara Mohila Sabuj Sangha.

6 TRADING INVESTMENT IN QUOTED SHARES
Cost value of shares at 31 December 2021  104,043,210 
Add/(Less): Change in fair value during the year  (3,302,411)
Fair value at 31 December 2021  100,740,799 

Cost value of shares at 31 December 2021:  Cost Price  Fair Value 
Investment in Quoted Shares:  81,959,280  78,656,869 
Investment in IPO Shares  22,083,930  22,083,930 

 104,043,210  100,740,799 

Investment in Quoted Shares: Nos. of shares  Cost price Fair market 
value

ACMELAB  27,000  2,241,875  2,335,500 
BATBC  12,500  8,847,660  7,945,000 
BRACBANK  183,862  9,773,303  10,167,569 
BSCCL  33,981  7,627,858  7,139,408 
BXPHARMA  21,975  4,254,091  4,234,583 
DOREENPWR  40,000  2,684,859  2,712,000 
GP  17,811  6,608,896  6,224,945 
IDLC  15,000  909,315  904,500 
MATINSPINN  40,000  2,224,440  2,204,000 
POWERGRID  130,252  7,405,267  7,763,019 
SINGERBD  15,938  2,972,523  2,707,866 
SQUARETEXT  20,000  1,042,080  1,044,000 
SQURPHARMA  108,607  25,367,113  23,274,480 
TOTAL  81,959,280  78,656,869 

Investment in IPO Shares Nos. of shares  Cost price 
Fair market 

value
Union Insurance Co. Ltd.  4,643  46,430  46,430 
BD Thai Food & Beverage Ltd.  63,750  637,500  637,500 
Union Bank Limited  2,140,000  21,400,000  21,400,000 
TOTAL  22,083,930  22,083,930 

7 DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS)/LIABILTIES
Fixed Assets (as per Financial Statements)  936,783 
Tax base carrying amount  879,230 

 57,553 

Deferred Tax (assets)/liabilities  21,582 

8 BALANCE WITH SHELTECH BROKERAGE LTD.
Balance With Sheltech Brokerage Ltd.  38,031,731 

 38,031,731 

9 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
Interest receivable from fixed deposits  264,384 
Dividend receivable from trading investments  689,730 
Interest receivable from zero coupon bond  552,523 

 1,506,637 
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Particulars 2021

10 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Security deposit with Central Depository Bangladesh Ltd.  200,000 
Advance Income Tax Paid  725,140 
Advance-Registration Fees for Depository Participant  764,750 
Advance-Establishment Rent  77,000 

 1,766,890 

11 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balance with Community Bank Bangladesh Limited (SND Account)  28,535,471 
Fixed Deposit with Community Bank Bangladesh Limited  20,000,000 

 48,535,471 

12 SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised
50,000,000 shares of BDT 10 each  500,000,000 
Issued, subscribed and paid up
25,000,000 ordinary shares of BDT 10 each  250,000,000 

Name of shareholder No. of shares  Value of 
shares 

% of share 
holding

Bangladesh Police Kallyan Trust (BPKT)  10 100 0.00004%
Community Bank Bangladesh Limited  24,999,990 249,999,900 99.99996%

 25,000,000 250,000,000 100.00000%

13 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
Provision for operating expense (note 13.1)  176,272 

13.1 PROVISION FOR OPERATING EXPENSE
AGM expense  150,000 
Service charge  8,189 
Electricity  4,000 
Support staff salary  10,810 
Mobile bill  2,000 
Telephone bill  173 
Support staff overtime bill  600 
CDS fees  500 

 176,272 

14 OTHER LIABILITIES
Payable-auditors’ fees  28,750 
Withholding tax payable-vendor  11,408 
Withholding VAT payable-vendor  16,334 
Others payable  60 

 56,552 

15 PROVISION FOR TAXATION
Opening balance  - 
Add: Provision made during the year  693,890 
Less: Adjustment for over provision in prior years  - 

 693,890 
Less: Paid/Adjustment during the year  - 
Closing balance  693,890 

16 INTEREST INCOME
Interest on margin loan  - 
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Particulars 2021

17 INCOME FROM INVESTMENT
Interest on fixed deposit  264,384 
Interest on Zero Coupon Bond  552,523 
Dividend from ordinary shares  845,980 

 1,662,887 

18 SERVICE INCOME
Corporate advisory fees  - 
Settlement fees  - 
Portfolio management fees  - 
Documentation charge  - 

 - 
19 OTHER INCOME

SND Interest Income  5,402,445 

20 SALARIES AND ALLOWANCES
Gross salaries  2,160,581 
Festival bonus  242,000 

 2,402,581 
21 RENT, TAXES, INSURANCE, UTILITIES, ETC

Rent  442,750 
Electricity  28,400 
Other Utility  81,017 

 552,167 
22 REPAIRS, MAINTENANCE AND DEPRECIATION

Repair and maintenance  - 
Depreciation-Property, Plant and Equipment  100,947 

 100,947 

23 STATIONERY, PRINTING AND ADVERTISING
Printing and stationery  2,115 

 2,115 

24 POSTAGE, STAMP AND TELECOMMUNICATION
Postage and courier charge  - 
Stamps, court fees and legal doc  3,090 
Telephone charges  12,025 

 15,115 

25 OTHER EXPENSES
Formation Expense (Note 25.1)  757,611 
Regulatory fees and charge  362,755 
Staff recruitment  217,955 
Govt levies excise duties VAT  80,000 
Bank charges  1,051 
IT enabled services  5,617 
Office refreshment  52,317 
IT consumables  5,322 
Office support service expenses  65,982 
Local conveyance  6,260 
Registration Fees for Depository Participant  40,250 
AGM expense  150,000 

 1,745,120 
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Particulars 2021

25.1 FORMATION EXPENSE
Regulatory fees and charge  481,633 
Staff recruitment  274,978 
Application fees  1,000 

 757,611 

26 FINANCE EXPENSE
Short term loan  - 
Overdraft loan  - 

 - 

27 RELATED PARTIES

Parent company

Community Bank Bangladesh Limited (CBBL) owns 99.99996% shares of the Company. Thus, CBBL holds the 
controlling interest in the Company.

28  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk 
management framework. The Company’s management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by 
the Company to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management 
policies, procedures and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the company’s 
activities. The Company has provided in separate notes the information about the Company’s exposure to each of the 
following risks, the Company’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risks and the Company’s 
management of capital. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments.

- Credit risk

28.1 CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the company if any customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails to 
meet its contractual obligation. This principally arises from the company’s receivables from customers.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at 
the reporting date was:

Trading Investments  104,043,210 

Accounts receivables  1,506,637 

 105,549,847 

28.2 LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The company’s 
approach to managing liquidity (cash and cash equivalents) is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 
sufficient liquid assets to meets its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or taking risk of damage to the company’s reputation. Typically, the company ensures that it has 
sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet expected operational expenses through preparation of the cash flow 
forecast, prepared based on time line payment of the financial obligation and accordingly arrange for sufficient liquidity/
fund to make the expected payment within the due date.
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28.3 MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that any changes in market price, such as interest rates and capital market condition will affect the 
company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to 
manage and control market risk exposure within acceptable parameters.

29 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The number of employees engaged for the whole year or part thereof who received an yearly remuneration of BDT 
36,000 or above was 1 (One).

30 OTHERS

 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest BDT.

Managing Director & CEO
Md. Mominul Hoque, CFA

Director
Masihul Huq Chowdhury

Director
Abu Hasan Muhammad Tarique, BPM

Chairman
Dr. Benazir Ahmed, BPM (Bar)
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EVENTS
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Corporate Branch 
Police Plaza Concord
(Level 5, Tower 2) Plot 2
Road 144 Gulshan 1
Dhaka 1212
Phone +88 09612 712001

Gulshan Branch
South Breeze Square (Gr. Floor)
52, Gulshan Avenue
Gulshan 1, Dhaka-1212
Phone +88 09612 712007

Dhanmondi Branch
Taj Lily Green (1st Floor)
751, Satmosjid Road
Dhanmondi, Dhaka 1209
Phone +88 09612 712008

Motijheel Branch
Cosmos Tower
Holding No.28/1/2
Toyenbee Circular Road
Motijheel, Dhaka 1000
Phone +88 09612 712002

Uttara Branch
Rajuk Rajib Cosmo
Shopping Complex ( 1st Floor)
Plot No. 71, Sector No. 7
Uttara,Dhaka
Phone +88 09612 712010

Chawkbazar Branch
Shahjahan Imam Tower
29-31 Water Works Road
(1st Floor) Chawkbazar, Dhaka.
Phone +88 09612 712009

Mawna Branch
Bhai Bhai City Complex
HoldingNo.255
Sreepur Road, Word 8
Sreepur Pourashava
Gazipur 1704
Phone +88 09612 712003

Panchabati Branch
Akbar Tower, Hariharpara
Enayetnagar, Fatullah
Narayanganj 1400
Phone +88 09612 712004

Agrabad Branch
Chamber House (Ground Floor)
38 Agrabad Commercial Area
Chattogram 4100
Phone +88 09612 712006

Noapara Branch
Chowdhury Bhaban (1st Floor)
Saihamnagar, Noapara Bazar
Madhabpur, Habiganj 3333
Phone +88 09612 712005

Panchdona Branch
Amzad Tower (1st Floor)
Burairhat, Panchdona
Madhabdi, Narsingdi 1603
Phone +88 09612 712011

Mirzapur Branch
Holding: 159, Ward No-03
Baimhati, Kakoly Moor,
Kalibari Road
Mirzapur, Tangail-1940
Phone +88 09612 712012

Gouripur Branch

Daag No 7715, 7716, Angaura
Gouripur Bazar, Daudkandi
Cumilla 3517
Phone +88 09612712013

Khulna Branch
Tayamun Center, 181/1
Jashore Road, Ward 17
Shib Bari More, Khulna 9100
Phone +88 09612712014

Ranirbandar Branch
Grameen Tower (1st Floor)
Daag No 3377, 3378
Dinajpur 5241
Phone +88 09612712015

Nawabganj Branch
Sajeda Complex (Ground Floor)
Kolakopa, Kashimpur
Nawabganj, Dhaka 1320
Phone +88 09612712016

Anderkilla Branch
Ismail Trade Center,
183 Nazir Ahmed Chowdhury Road
Ward 32, Anderkilla, Kotwali
Chattogram 4000
Phone +88 09612712017

Fulbaria Branch
Fulbaria Green City,
Holding 516 Word 8,
Mymensingh Fulbaria Road
Fulbaria, Mymensingh 2216
Phone +88 09612712018

Contact Center: 16707 , +88 096 127 16707


